
THE TOPEKA LANDMARKS COMMISSION MEETING 
Holliday Office Building 

620 SE Madison Ave., Holliday Conference Room, 1st Floor

A G E N D A  
Thursday, August 15, 2019 5:30 PM 

I. Roll Call 

II. Approval of Minutes –June 13, 2019

III. Announcement of Potential Conflicts

IV. CLGR19-18 by David Guadnola and Fay Heazlit, 125 SW Greenwood Ave. –
Requesting a Certificate of Appropriateness for the demolition of an existing garage on
the property, located within the Potwin Place National Register Historic District.

V. CLGR19-20 by David Guadnola and Fay Heazlit, 125 SW Greenwood Ave. –
Requesting a Certificate of Appropriateness for the construction of a new garage on the
property located within the Potwin Place National Register Historic District.

VI. Administrative Approvals
• 925 S. Kansas Ave., Crosby/US Bank Building - approval of finishing

treatments within a portion of the building’s 2nd level, reviewed and
APPROVED by the Design Review Committee

VII. Progress Update on structural stabilization of the Thacher Building, 112 SE 8th Ave.

VIII. RFP Review Committee Volunteers (2 Commission members), August 23, 2019

IX. Kansas State Historic Preservation Conference, September 19-21, 2019, Dodge
City, Kansas

X. Other Items

XI. Adjournment

ADA Notice:  For special accommodations for this event, please contact the Planning 
Department at 785-368-3728 at least three working days in advance. 



TOPEKA LANDMARKS COMMISSION 

M I N U T E S

Thursday, June 13, 2019 
Holliday Office Building   l   620 SE Madison  l  1st Floor Holliday Conference Room 

… DRAFT …

Roll Call 

Members Present: Cheyenne Anderson, Mark Burenheide, David Heit, Donna Rae Pearson, Grant 
Sourk (Chair), Cassandra Taylor (6) 
Members Absent: Jeff Carson, Paul Post, Christine Steinkuehler (3) 
Staff Present: Tim Paris, Dan Warner, Kris Wagers 

Chairperson David Heit called the meeting of the Topeka Landmarks Commission to order with six 
members present for a quorum.  

Approval of Minutes – May 9, 2019 

Motion by Mr. Sourk to approve; second by Ms. Taylor. APPROVAL  (6-0-0) 

Announcement of potential conflicts - none 

Review and Comment on the National Register Nomination for St. Mark’s AME Church at 801 NW 
Harrison St. 

Mr. Paris explained that this is an opportunity to comment and/or make suggestions of changes to the 
nomination document. Ms. Pearson stated that she has some suggestions and will send them in writing to 
Mr. Paris, who will the pass them along to the Katrina Ringler at the Kansas Historical Society. Discussion 
included suggestions of placing more emphasis on the church itself in the Integrity of Association 
category. There were questions as to the timeline of Oliver Brown’s term as pastor at St. Mark’s. 

Motion by Mr. Sourk that the Landmarks Commission support the nomination and send additional 
information to the Kansas Historical Society. Mr. Paris stated that he will forward additional information 
along to Katrina Ringler at the Kansas Historical Society and cite it as having come from a member of the 
Landmarks Commission. Second by Ms. Anderson. APPROVED (6-0-0) 

Review and Comment on the National Register Nomination for Topeka Fire Station No. 4 at 813 SW 
Clay St. 

Mr. Paris explained that he is the author of the nomination and intends to write nominations for either 
multiple properties all at once or, if necessary due to time constraints, stations #1, #4, #6, and #7 
individually. The former was suggested by SHPO.  

Mr. Paris shared some anecdotes he learned of through his research, including history on the water mains 
and water department, the City founder’s cabin burning down, and the transition from horse drawn to 
mechanical engines. 

Mr. Sourk asked how much the interior has been altered over the years, and Mr. Paris stated that changes 
are not significant and deal with subdivision of spaces.  

Motion by Ms. Pearson that the Landmarks Commission support the nomination; second by Mr. 
Burenheide. APPROVED (6-0-0) 



TOPEKA LANDMARKS COMMISSION 

M I N U T E S 
_________________________________________________________________________

… DRAFT …

2 

6.13.2019 

Discussion of “Historic Signs” and responsibilities of the Landmarks Commission as reflected in the 
proposed update to the City of Topeka Sign Regulations. 

Mr. Warner explained that the Planning Commission recommended to the Governing Body approval of an 
update to the City of Topeka Sign Regulations. The update includes the requirement that non-conforming 
signs be brought closer to compliance if changes are made to the signs, but it also provides for exemption 
if the sign is deemed “historic” by the Topeka Landmarks Commission. The sign must continue to be 
properly maintained and the exemption would be conditional to maintenance/upkeep and safety. There 
was discussion about what might qualify a sign as “historic” and the process that might be followed. Mr. 
Paris stated that the sign must meet the criteria for designation as a local historic landmark but does not 
have to have to be officially designated as such. There was also discussion of the possibility of someone 
requesting to place an “old” sign that might not be placed right now, i.e. similar circumstances to the Chief 
Drive-In Sign. Mr. Sourk noted that Wheatfield Village had considered placing the Southwest Bowl sign, 
which would have been a similar situation.  

Administrative Approval of 921 S Kansas Avenue substitute materials and minor alteration of finished 
design. 

Mr. Paris reviewed the request and his administrative approval. 

Other 

Mr. Paris reminded all that “The Big Reveal” is scheduled for this weekend (June 14 & 15) and stated that 
removal of the vinyl siding at 116 SW The Drive will make the property eligible to be included in the 
Garlinghouse Study. 

Ms. Pearson noted the burning and subsequent demolition of 109 N Kansas Avenue. 

Adjournment at 6:16 PM  





















   
 

 

Condition Report 
125 Greenwood Avenue Garage 
August 1, 2019 
 

Tim Paris,   

 

We would like to offer this condition report for 125 Greenwood Avenue garage.  

 

 Carved into the slab is the year 1951 (ref Fig 1) 

 The foundation has settled, causing the garage walls to twist and the door openings are no 

longer plum and cannot be closed to the elements (ref Fig 2). 

 The walls are not at ninety-degree corners. This settling and twisting of the foundation and 

structure has not only caused the building to be unsafe but has also caused significant damage 

to the trim and stucco. 

 The trim has become warped and rotten (ref Fig 3).  

 The stucco has cracked in many areas (ref Fig 4).  

 The garage has shifted 2.5” in 4’ vertical (ref Figures 5, 6, 7, 8). 

 

The existing detached garage is too small for many modern vehicles, including the building Owner’s 

truck.  It is our belief that there is not a prudent and feasible alternative to modify this garage to provide 

a garage that fits the Owner’s vehicle.  

 

We have not found evidence that this garage was built at the same time as the house.   Because its 

location hidden behind the original house we believe that removing it does not significantly damage the 

historic integrity of the district. 

 

Thank you,  

 

 

 

Bryan Falk,  AIA - NCARB - LEED AP 

Architect, licensed in KS, MO & NE 

Falk Architects, Inc 

602 SW 6th Ave. #1 

Topeka, Kansas 66603 

785-691-9958 (direct) 

bryan
Image



   
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fig. 1. Foundation year.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

B  

 

 

 

 

 

 

              

 

Fig. 1. Foundation (Top)  

Fig. 2. Door opening. (Left)  

Fig. 3. Trim detailing. (Right) 

Fig. 4. Stucco Crack (Bottom)  



 
 

 

 

 

 

  

Fig. 5 Wall 2 ½”out of plum  Fig. 6 Wall out of plum  

Fig. 7 Wall 2 ½”out of plum  Fig. 8 Door out of plum  















EXISTING GARAGE 
TO BE DEMOLISHED

125 SW GREENWOOD 
AVE. HOUSE 

NEW GARGE 
LOCATION

1
1

' 
- 

0
"

10' - 0"

1
8

' 
- 

0
"

24' - 0"

3
2

' 
- 

0
"

1
2

' 
- 

0
"

5
5

' 
- 

0
"

A
L
L
E

Y
 

1
2
5
 G

R
E

E
N

W
O

O
D

 A
V

E
. 
 

2
5

' 
- 

0
"

APPROX. 
768 SQFT

APPROX.
342 SQFT

APPROX. 
1250 SQFT

240' - 0"

HOUSE APPROX 1250 SQFT  x .9  = 1125 (90%)

NEW GARAGE APPROX. 768 SQFT

EXISTING GARAGE APPROX. 342 SQFT 

1
8

' 
- 

0
"

19' - 0"

50' - 0"

2018  Falk Architects Incc

DATE:

D
A

T
E

 P
R

IN
T

E
D

:
F

IL
E

 P
A

T
H

:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

FALK ARCHITECTS INC 

DRAWINGS NOT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION UNLESS 
PROFESSIONAL STAMP, SIGNATURE 
& DATE IS PROVIDED.

8
/2

/2
0

1
9

 1
0

:3
3
:3

0
 A

M
G

:\
M

y
 D

ri
v
e

\0
0
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 F

A
L

K
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

\2
0

1
9

 P
ro

je
c
ts

\C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 2
0

1
9

\2
0
1

9
-0

3
7

 1
2
5

 G
re

e
n
w

o
o

d
G

a
ra

g
e

\0
3
7

_
1

2
5
 G

re
e

n
w

o
o

d
 G

a
ra

g
e
.r

v
t

SITE PLAN

A100

08/02/19

SD

N
E

W
 G

A
R

A
G

E
1

2
5

 S
W

 G
R

E
E

N
W

O
O

D
 A

V
E

. 
T

O
P

E
K

A
, 

K
S

 6
6

6
0

6

JC

BJF

19 - 037

1" = 10'-0" ASITE PLAN


	1 August 8 Agenda
	2 LC Minutes 6-13-19 - DRAFT
	3 CLGR19-18 Staff Report 125 SW Greenwood Garage Demo
	4 CLGR19-18 Additional Photo Documentation
	5 CLGR 19-18 Garage Condition Report
	6 CLGR19-20 Staff Report 125 SW Greenwood New Garage
	7 CLGR19-20 125 Greenwood Garage - SITE PLAN
	Sheets
	A100 - SITE PLAN


	Blank Page
	Blank Page

